MINUTES OF MEETING

OF THE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
THE STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF HAYS ' §
HAYS COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 §

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Hays County Water Control and Improvement District No.

1 (sometimes referred to herein as the “District”) met in special session, open to the public, at Belterra Centre,
151 Trinity Hills Drive, Austin, Texas, the District’s office within the District, for the purposes stated herein,
on August 27, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. The roll was called of the members of the Board of Directors, (herein
referred to as the “Board”™) to-wit:

Bill Dally President

Paul Kelly Vice President

Daniel B. Robison Secretary

Rick Lucas Treasurer/Asst. Secretary
Vacant Assistant Secretary

All members of the Board participated in the meeting and were present at the commencement of the

meeting. Also present at the meeting were Matt Kutac of the Law Offices of Matthew B. Kutac, PLLC, Vicki
Hahn, paralegal with Winstead PC, Beth Wright of Municipal Operations and Consulting, LLC (“MOC”),
the operations and management contractor for the District and Lauren Barzilla of Burgess & Niple, the
District’s engineers, and Allen Douthitt of Botth & Douthitt, the District’s bookkeepers.

1.

Public Comment: The Board called for public comment. Hearing none, the Board moved to the next
item on the agenda.

Procedure: Director Dally mentioned that he was not happy with how last month’s meeting went.
To make sure that does not happen again, he would like to implement the policy that Mr. Botts used
when he was President. He would like for the Consultants to give their complete report before
Directors ask any questions or make any comments. Once the Consultant has completed their report,
he will recognize each Director so they may ask their question or comment on the report. All of the
Directors will have the opportunity to ask questions. Director Lucas stated that he played a part in
the problem that occurred at last month’s meeting. He apologized to Mr. Wright and went on to
clarify that he has worked with MOC long enough to know how important their reputation is to them
and did not intend to offend them.

Proposed Budget: Mr. Douthitt reviewed the draft budget in detail.

General Utility and Security Charges. There are no proposed changes to the rate order for the water
rates. Wastewater has been adjusted pursuant to the proposed Amended Rate Order, Security Patrols
are on Page 3 and they are on that page because they are a shared expense with HC2. If the District
continues patrols as they have in the recent past, the District will need to add a little more money to

o1



the budget. The Board asked if fines and surcharges have been added to the budget. Mr. Douthitt
replied that they are not because the amount would be too speculative. Director Dally noted that
fines and surcharges are not considered a revenue stream for the District.

Superall charges: Mr. Douthitt has taken the amount out of the joint cost and moved it to bill either
the District or HCWCID No. 2, depending on which district owns the relevant lift station. Director
Dally mentioned that that this allocation needs to be addressed because when the District voted to
use Superall, the districts agreed to split the cost on a 50/50 basis and not based on who owned each
lift station. Mr. Kutac noted that there was no formal agreement implemented to reflect this charge
but his intention is to add the cost split to the Joint Facilities Agreement when it is amended to address
issues related to the potential water tank.

Pipe Televising and Possible Repairs: The Board discussed the requirement to televise the lines this
year and if televising the line would uncover potential repairs. Ms. Barzilla responded that there may
be some sagging of lines and she thinks possible repairs should be added to a watch list. Mr. Wright
added that quarterly cleaning should be added as well. Mr. Wright noted that it would be a good idea
to add approximately $50,000 to $70,000 for repairs. The Board agreed to increase the line item for
unanticipated repairs to $70,000.

SCADA Security: SCADA security was discussed. The Board asked if money is in the budget for
any unforeseen security items that might be needed. Mr. Douthitt replied that there is $32,000 in the
budget right now for the SCADA.

Interest: Mr. Douthitt took a very conservative approach on interest because of the possibility of
lower interest rates. Director Dally wants the interest rate to be conservative but feels that it may be
too conservative. It was also noted that the Board might be looking at decreasing the tax rate by one
cent. The Board decided to include $200,000 for interest income. It was also noted that the District
earns interest on the debt service fund as well. The Board asked about the change in the
miscellaneous item to $1,000, and Mr. Douthitt stated that the line item previously included the
FEMA money the District received, but it will not continue into next year’s budget.

Legal Fees: Mr. Douthitt mentioned that he revised Mr. Barrett’s fees from a retainer fee to an hourly
fee as the Board discussed at the last meeting. The Board discussed that using Mr, Barrett’s services
for TCEQ or WTCPUA issues in the future could be costly. The Board stated that they understood
that. Mr. Kutac mentioned that Mr. Barrett’s agreement will need to be revised to reflect any
changes.

Potential Water Tank: Mr. Douthitt noted that he put the balance of what is owed to Burgess & Niple
(“B&N”) under this category. The $190,000 is the District’s half of B&N’s design costs. Ms.
Barzilla asked if B&N’s construction phase service costs have been included in the budget. Mr.
Douthitt replied that they are not included in this budget.

Detention pond and park maintenance: It was noted that $20,000 is in the budget to complete Pecan
Park improvements, if needed. With respect to the pond near the Belterra Centre, the Board asked
about getting a proposal to clean it out. Mr. Wright stated that he has a contractor that could dredge
it instead of draining it and he will get a proposal. Mr. Kutac asked how much Mr. Wright is
estimating for the work to determine whether it would need to be bid. Mr. Wright replied that the
contractor has new technology, and he was unsure as to the potential cost. Mr. Wright explained the
new technology. Mr. Kutac noted that the pond is clay lined so the District needs to ensure that the
new technology will not damage it. Mr. Wright replied that the brush on the robot will not damage
the clay liner. Mr. Wright mentioned that the new technology is faster than draining the pond. Mr.

22



Wright offered to request that the contractor allow him to inspect a completed project. The Board
discussed its comfort level with adding the $250,000 and possibly splitting the cost between two
fiscal years.

Drip Irrigation; The Board requested an increase from $5,000 to $20,000 for Drip Irrigation repairs.
Signage: The Board would like to add money for signs to the budget.

Playscapes. Director Robison suggested having the playscapes power washed two or three times a
year. The canvas canopies as well. The Board requested that money for power washing be added to
the budget.

Wildflowers: The Board determined to remove the $8,000 for wildflowers.

Monuments: The Board mentioned that the monuments need attention. Mr. Douthitt replied that the
money that had been set aside for the master plan has been moved to monuments,

Trails: The Board discussed that there may be some places on the trails where the decomposed
granite (“DG”) should be replaced by concrete so that the water would flow through and go to green
spaces without eroding trails. Also there are some slopes where the DG just does not work. The
Board gave the example of the Wellington trail noting that Sunscape has put a lot of work into that
area but the DG is just not working. Director Lucas proposes keeping $40,000 and having the Parks
Committee recommend a plan. Ms. Barzilla asked the Board to show her the location they are
discussing. The Board agreed to include $40,000 as a placeholder.

Trees: The Board determined to put $18,000 in the budget for trees.
Pecan Park: The Board determined to add funding to the budget for lighting.

Resolution Approving Partial Assignment of Fund Balance: The Board discussed the Resolution
Approving Partial Assignment of Fund Balance, noting that the assignment is intended to cover
maintenance, repair and rehabilitation costs related to District infrastructure without increasing rates
or issuing new debt. The amount is currently $3.5 million, but the Board would like to increase that
amount to $4 million in light of aging infrastructure and increased construction costs.

Upon motion by Director Lucas, seconded by Director Almon and unanimously carried, the Board
approved the Resolution Approving Partial Assignment of Fund Balance.

Amended Service Rate Order: Mr. Kutac explained that the Amended Service Rate Order is
essentially the same as when it was discussed at the Joint Board Meeting on July 15", An effective
date of December 1*has been inserted, but there were no other changes. Director Lucas reviewed
proposed surcharge for non-standard customers that exceed their service commitments, which
include a 1.5% surcharge for water and a 2.0% surcharge for wastewater. It was noted that the
wastewater surcharge is higher because the potential costs associated with exceeding the District’s
wastewater capacity would be very high, and while the District’s volume water rates are already
tiered, the District’s volume wastewater rate is flat and lower than most of the water rate tiers. The
surcharge rate for wastewater would $8.00 per thousand gallons, which the Board found to be
reasonable. Direct Lucas asked MOC to look at the numbers in depth. The Board reviewed the chart
prepared by MOC based on the July usage numbers for non-standard customers that exceeded their
allotment. The District wants customers to conserve and comply with their service commitments.
The District does not view this as a revenue stream. Director Lucas is happy with the surcharges as

-3-






